
 1 

BURRILLVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
Meeting Place:  Jesse M. Smith Library, Community Room 
Meeting Date:  March 22, 2011 
Meeting Time:  7:00 PM 
 
Members Present: 

James Langlois, Chairman   Mark Brizard 
Edward Bonczek Jeffrey J. Barr, Vice President 
Barbara Schouboe, Alternate Member  
  

 
Members Absent: 

David Fontaine Royal Laurent, Alternate Member 
  

 
Staff/Consultants Present: 

Michael C. Wood, Secretary Scott A. Gibbs, NEEDS, Inc. 
Timothy F. Kane, General Legal Counsel  
  

Others: 
  

 
Call To Order:  
James Langlois called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM.  Langlois announced that David Fontaine and Royal 
Laurent have been excused from the meeting.  Langlois noted that Barbara Schouboe would be a voting 
member.   

 
Approval of Minutes: 
 Jeffrey Barr made a motion to approve the minutes of February 22, 2011 regular meeting.  Barbara 
Schouboe seconded the motion and the vote in favor was unanimous. Jeffrey Barr made a motion to approve 
the minutes of the February 22, 2011 annual meeting.  Mark Brizard seconded the motion and the vote in 
favor was unanimous.   
 
James Langlois made a motion to recess for the purpose of walking over to the Clock Tower property to 
review options to expand the parking lot to accommodate the parking requirements of the tenant of the 
incubator space, and to review the land for locating of the Farmers Market Pavilion.  Mark Brizard seconded 
the motion and the vote in favor was unanimous.   
 
James Langlois reconvened the meeting. 
 
Invoices: 
None 
 
Citizens Comment: 
None 
 
Consultants Staff Report: 
 
Discussion, consideration and action relative to Financial Report(s) including Budgets and Audits. 
Mark Brizard made a motion to table this item until the next meeting.  Barbara Schouboe seconded the 
motion and the vote in favor was unanimous.   
 



 2 

Old Business: 
 
Discussion, consideration and action relative to the Clock Tower project. 
Mark Brizard stated that there are currently no residents living at the Clock Tower Apartments, although 
seven units are scheduled for occupancy on April 1, 2011.  Brizard stated that the Building Official is 
granting a temporary Certificate of Occupancy for the seven units. 
 
Discussion, consideration and action relative to the Office Incubator Space, Clock Tower Project located at 
180 Tinkham Lane, Harrisville, RI. 
Mike Wood explained that the project developer submitted a $29,000 change order shortly after the Agency 
signed the lease.  Wood stated that the developer subsequently withdrew this change order related to the fit-
out of the incubator space. Wood explained that the Tenant mentioned that the window blinds were not 
included in the fit-out scope and budget.  Wood proposed to the Tenant that the cost for the blinds totaling 
$4,577 be split evenly between the BRA and the Tenant.  The Tenant accepted the offer.  Mark Brizard made 
a motion to approve a change order to the fit-out contract in an amount of $4,577.  Jeffrey Barr seconded the 
motion and the vote in favor was unanimous.  
 
Discussion, consideration and action relative to the Stillwater Mill Redevelopment District. 
 
a. Professional Services for the Farmer’s Market project. 
Wood stated that they met with Jeff McCormick regarding a design proposal for the Farmer’s Market.  Wood 
indicated that the proposed design cost was too high.  Tom Kravitz and Jeff McCormick worked together to 
develop revised project numbers based on the preliminary design, using either Norbert Therein or CME 
under a revised scope.  Wood stated that a grant request has been submitted to USDA in the amount of 
$70,000. Wood stated that in order to get the grant going, they had to estimate project costs. This estimate 
includes the Burrillville DPW providing in-kind services as a portion of the match for the federal money.  
According to Wood, the only additional Town funds might be $10,000 for DPW materials, etc. from the 
Town's CIP.  Any additional monies will come from the BRA budget.     
 
Brizard asked if the $3,500 allocation is for the preliminary planning applicable to only this grant, or is it 
applicable to subsequent grant requests.  Langlois asked about the naming of Farmers Market and whether 
they understand that it is multiple use facility.  Kravitz stated that they fully understand that other parties can 
use the facility, although they want to have first dibs on use.  Brizard stated that it would be important in the 
design that the building could be used as a stage similar to that of an amphitheater.  Langlois also asked 
whether subsequent Farmers Market meetings can include a BRA representative attending.  Barr inquired 
whether the BRA would be covering the operating costs, which Wood affirmed.  Barr asked whether they 
could charge a usage fee to cover these costs.  Langlois stated that a similar process is used at the Assembly 
Hall.  Langlois implied that the Farmers Market actually results in an alteration of the Stillwater Plan Master 
Plan. Kravitz indicated no, that it is generally in conformance with the Master Plan.  Mark Brizard made a 
motion to appropriate $3,500 for preliminary design of the Farmers Market project.  Edward Bonczek 
seconded the motion and the vote in favor was unanimous.   
 
b. Clock Tower Parking Lot.  
Mark Brizard argued that all of the parking lot islands on the lower end of Tinkham Lane should be 
eliminated because they present obstacles for such things as plowing.  Langlois agreed with Brizard’s 
comment.  Barr asked about the walkway across the parking lot and why it exists.  The Town will reorganize 
the parking which will result in additional spaces.  Mark Brizard made a motion to eliminate all islands in the 
lower portion of the parking lot.  Bonczek seconded the motion and the vote in favor was unanimous.  Note: 
Trees will be replanted. 
 
c. Parking lot lights.   
It was noted that D&D electric never submitted a response regarding maintenance of the parking lot lights in 
the redevelopment district.  Gibbs stated that he would follow up with the vendor 
 



 3 

 
d.  Hydro-electric Project 
Wood indicated that the study of the proposed micro-hydro project has been completed.  The Pascoag Utility 
District will be acting on a rate schedule that would provide limited revenue from the proposed hydro 
facility.  Wood stated that following the rate approval, funding of the project could then be addressed.  
Project would require that the Town secure substantial capital project costs through grant(s).  Wood stated 
that the numbers don't necessarily make sense unless the project is subsidized.  Kravitz stated he needs to 
secure about $400,000 from grants to make the project payback reasonable.   
 
Wood presented a concept for maintenance of public areas in the Stillwater Redevelopment District, resulting 
from discussions with the Board of Administration.  Langlois stated that they were getting some cost 
numbers together.  Wood suggested that the BRA look at this issue through its subcommittee.   
 
 
Discussion, consideration and action relative to the Downtown Pascoag Redevelopment District. 
 
a. Capital Improvement Program Request for Park Place (parking, road, and sidewalk). 
Wood explained that a request for $130,000 budgeting request is on the CIP agenda for tomorrow night.  The 
funds would be used for parking, road, and sidewalk improvements for Park Place. 
 
Brizard made reference to the property (white house) that prohibits the continuation of Park Place and that 
the property is in such disrepair.  Kravitz stated that the proposed improvements to Park Place are only up to 
the proposed parking lot, not the entire Park Place up to the house in question.  Wood asked this issue to be 
put on the Executive Session for next meeting.   
 
 
New Business To Be Discussed And Acted Upon: 
  
Update the Town Council on Agency Activities and Planning Activities. 
Langlois stated that this update is scheduled for the April Agency meeting.  
 
Invitation to Meet the EDC on March 29, 2011 at the Jesse M. Smith Memorial Library. 
Langlois stated that the meeting notice went out two weeks ago and that the meeting is scheduled to begin at 
7:00 p.m.   
 
Correspondence: 
None 
 
General Discussion: 
None 
 
 
Executive Session: 
 
Request for Executive Session from Michael C. Wood, Secretary, pursuant to Rhode Island Open Meeting 
Law [42-46-5 (a)(5)] for discussion and considerations related to the acquisition, sale or exchange of real 
property. 
a) Agreement with NeighborWorks to lease and/or acquire property. 
b) Exchange or lease of property within the Clock Tower building. 
c) Downtown Pascoag properties (various) 

i. Consider and act on map 175, lot 019 
ii. Various Redevelopment Agency owned property 
iii. Consider and act on Map 175, Lots 44 and 50 

 



 4 

James Langlois made a motion to go into Executive Session with Mark Brizard, Jeffrey Barr, Edward 
Bonczek, and Barbara Schouboe all voting in favor. 
 
James Langlois made a motion to reconvene the public portion of the meeting and to seal the minutes of the 
Executive Session with Mark Brizard, Edward Bonczek, Barbara Schouboe, and Jeffrey Barr all voting to 
support the motion.  The public portion of the meeting was reconvened in open session where it was 
announced that no vote was taken in Executive Session. 
 
 
Adjournment: 
On a motion by James Langlois seconded by Jeff Barr, the meeting was adjourned at 7:25 PM. 
 
 

 
Minutes approved by: 
 
__________________________________                                _________________________________ 
Michael C. Wood, Secretary     Date: 
 
    Date filed with Town Clerk:  _________________________  
 
 
 
Only dealt with c.i.  Kane sent P&S to Connelly of which the owner has responded.  Will go over tomorrow.  
Issue that the owner wants the EPA to hold his daughter harmless.  Wood stated that the tax deal with the 
Town is not a done deal.   


